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I. SUMMARY 
 

The City of St. Louis Treasurer’s Office (“STLTO”) is soliciting proposals (“Proposals”) 
from qualified vendors to provide security custody services for its fixed-income portfolio (each 
individually, a “Proposer” or collectively, the “Proposers”).  The City maintains three (3) 
separate portfolios with assets totaling $180 million.  Due to seasonal liquidity needs balances 
fluctuate from $130 million to $180 million during the year.     

 
 Current Assets 
General Pool Portfolio $57.2 million 
Airport Portfolio  $105.3 million 
Airport PFC Portfolio  $17.5 million 

 
Each of the three portfolios is invested exclusively in high-quality fixed-income assets.  The 

portfolios are currently managed by an external investment advisor.  In aggregate, approximately 
72 individual positions are owned.  Over the last 12 months, in total there were 104 purchases 
and 38 sales occurring across all thee portfolios. 
 

As of July 17, 2014 the portfolios were diversified as follows: U.S. Treasuries (32%), Federal 
Agencies (24%), and Commercial Paper (45%).  The maximum maturity permitted in the 
portfolio is 5 years, but the longest security currently held matures within 3 years.   
 

The custody bank will receive trade information from the STLTO’s investment advisor.  The 
custody bank will have no responsibility for investing or reinvesting these monies except for 
providing an overnight investment vehicle.  The City is NOT interested in securities lending.   

  
Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (“MBE”) and Women-Owned Business Enterprises 

(“WBE”) are encouraged to submit Proposals.   
 

This RFP does not obligate the STLTO to complete the selection and contract award process. 
STLTO reserves the right to: 1) accept or reject any and all Proposals; 2) request additional 
information from any or all Proposers to assist the STLTO in its evaluation process; 3) amend or 
withdraw this RFP prior to the announcement of the selected firm, or 4) award the proposed 
services in whole or in part, to one or more firms. In case of an amendment to the RFP, all 
Proposers will be provided with a copy of any such amendment(s) and be afforded the 
opportunity to revise their Proposals in response to the RFP amendment. 
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II. SERVICES REQUIRED 
 

Among the services required to be performed by the selected firm will be the following:    
 

A. Maintain 3 or more accounts in the bank’s custody operations (as opposed to simple 
safekeeping) for cash and individual securities owned by the City. 

B. Segregate all securities and cash from the assets of others.  The custodian shall have only 
the bare custody thereof and securities shall be and remain the sole property of the City.  
The securities held by the custody bank shall, unless payable to the bearer, be registered 
in the name of the City, or in the bank's nominee name for the benefit of the City.  
Securities delivered to the custody bank shall be in due form for transfer or already 
registered as provided above. 

C. Settle and deliver securities as directed through any broker, investment manager or 
advisor selected by the City.  

D. Act upon proper instructions from authorized persons received by fax or other acceptable 
methods by the City to affect the receipt, transfer and delivery of assets. 

E. Assign a dedicated day-to-day person that is familiar with the City’s portfolio, who is 
also available for phone conversations to address various questions. 

F. Commitment for an annual relationship review (semi-annual reviews are requested for 
the first two years of the contract with the City). 

G. Create, maintain and retain all records relating to securities held in custody in City 
accounts to meet the requirements and obligations under generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

H. Provide an overnight investment vehicle for cash balances in the custody accounts.  A list 
of securities permitted for overnight investment is provided in Attachment B to this RFP. 

I. Provide on-line reporting of portfolio activity and holdings on a real-time or next day 
basis.  

J. Provide on-line monthly activity statements and reports including the market value of all 
portfolio holdings. 

K. Provide monthly activity statements and reports for all accounts.  The statement cut off 
should be the last day of the month.  Statements must be sent by no later than five (5) 
business days after the close of each month. 
 

 
III. KEY DATES, CONTRACT TERM AND MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

 
A. Key Dates  

 
The following is a list of key dates, up to and including the date Proposals are due to be 
submitted, which is subject to change at STLTO’s discretion:  
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The following is a listing of key proposal and project milestones:   
 

Request for Proposal Issued July 21, 2014 

Vendors to Submit Questions  July 25, 2014 

City Response to Questions  August 1, 2014 

Due Date for Responses to RFP (“Due Date”) August 14, 2014 by 3:00 p.m. 

Finalist Interviews (Conference Call) August 26 – 27, 2014 

Contract Award Date September 5, 2014 

Contract Start Date TBD 
 
 

B. Anticipated Contract Term  
 

It is anticipated that the term of the contract awarded pursuant to this RFP (the “Contract”) 
will be three (3) years. STLTO reserves the right to terminate the Contract at any time, with 
or without cause, upon thirty (30) days written notice. 

 
C. INQUIRIES 
 

Prospective responders may direct questions in writing via e-mail only to: 
 
Judy Montgomery 
Email:  montgomeryj@stlouis-mo.gov 
 

Questions must be submitted no later than July 25,  2014.   The City will endeavor to provide 
answers to questions no later than August 1, 2014. Responses to questions will be sent to all 
proposers and posted on the City’s website at http://www.stlouis-
mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/. The department contact person is the only individual 
who can be contacted about the project by Proposers before Proposals are submitted.  The 
department contact cannot vary the terms of the RFP. 
 

 
IV. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS  
 

A. Restricted Period  
 

Applicants are restricted from making contact regarding this RFP with anyone in the STLTO 
other than the Designated Contact at STLTO specified above during the period from the date 
of publication of the notice of this RFP and its due date.  

 

mailto:montgomeryj@stlouis-mo.gov
http://www.stlouis-mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/
http://www.stlouis-mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/


City of St. Louis  Security Custody Services 
Treasurer's Office  July 21, 2014 
 

5 
 

B. Submission of Proposals  
 

Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m. on August 14, 2014.    
 
Proposers must submit three (3) hard copies of their Proposals and one (1) electronic CD-
ROM or USB flash drive copy as a PDF file in a sealed package clearly marked “Proposal 
Enclosed – Security Custody Services” to the following address by messenger, overnight 
courier or certified mail:  

 
Tishaura O. Jones  
Treasurer  
City of St. Louis, MO 
1200 Market Street, City Hall  
Room 220  
St. Louis, MO 63103  

 
The City has enlisted the services of a third-party consultant, PFM Asset Management LLC 
(“PFM”), to assist the City with this RFP. One (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic CD-ROM 
or USB flash drive copy as a PDF file must be submitted to PFM at the address below no 
later than the due date and time listed in this RFP. 

 
Mr. David J. Calvert 
Senior Managing Consultant 
PFM Asset Management LLC 
1 Keystone Plaza, Suite 300 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

 
STLTO is not responsible for any internal or external delivery delays which may cause any 
Proposal to arrive beyond the stated deadline. To be considered, Proposals must arrive at the 
time and place specified herein and be time/date stamped by STLTO prior to the Due Date. 
Please allow ample time for building security, as late Proposals will not be accepted. A 
Proposal submitted by fax or electronic transmission will NOT be accepted. A Proposer may, 
after submitting a Proposal, amend its Proposal by submitting a second, amended Proposal, 
clearly labeled “Amended Proposal Enclosed – Security Custody Services”, as long as the 
amended Proposal is submitted within the parameters specified herein. 
 
Public access to Proposals shall be governed by the relevant provisions of the Freedom of 
Information Act, State of Missouri Sunshine Law (RsMO 610.021), and regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto. 

 
V. PROPOSAL FORMAT AND CONTENTS  
 
A. Proposal Format  
 
The Proposal must be printed on 8½” x 11” paper. All pages must be sequentially numbered. The 
Proposal will be evaluated on the basis of its content, not length and should be limited to no 
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more than twenty (20) pages, exclusive of the Transmittal Letter and the Appendices listed 
below. STLTO reserves the right to disqualify Proposals that fail to comply with any of these 
instructions.  
 
B. Proposal Content  
 
Proposals must include the following sections in the order listed:  
 
1. Transmittal Letter, as follows:  
 

The Proposal must include a signed Transmittal Letter from a person within the firm who is 
authorized to bind the firm. Transmittal Letters must be signed. Proposals with unsigned 
Transmittal Letters will be rejected.  

 
Provide the name, title, address, phone number, fax number and email address of the primary 
relationship manager for this engagement. 

2. Executive Summary.  
 
3. Firm’s Responses to the RFP Questions and RFP Additional Information Request, set forth 

below.  
 
4. Firm’s Cost Proposal, as described below.  
 
5. A copy of Minimum Qualifications Compliance form, signed by someone within the firm who 

is authorized to bind the firm.  
 
C. RFP Questions  
 
Please provide the information requested below (please note that if sample reports or resumes are 
requested, they will not be included in the twenty (20) page limitation): 
 
1. Identify the individuals that will be directly involved in the management of the relationship.  

Please complete the following table: 
 
 
 
Individual 

 
 
Location 

Years of 
Industry 

Experience 

Years of 
Experience 
with Firm 

 
 

Proposed Role 
     
     
     
     

 

2. How frequently do you propose reviewing this relationship with the City?  Will these 
meetings be in-person? 
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3. Will a specific customer service representative be assigned to handle day-to-day transactions 
for this relationship?  

a. Describe the responsibilities of the customer service personnel, including the chain of 
command for any resolutions. 

b. What are the hours of operation of each customer service unit involved in supporting the 
proposed services? 

 
4. List the total number and market value of institutional custody accounts as of December 31 

for the following years: 2011, 2012, and 2013. 
 
5. Describe your firm’s history and experience of providing custody services. 

 
6. Provide the cut off times for notification of a transaction settling the same day.   

a. Fed Book Entry 
b. DTC 

 
7. Are security transactions settled on an actual or contractual basis?  If trades are settled on an 

actual basis, how will you compensate the City for fail float? 
 

8. At what time does the bank credit interest, dividends, and maturities? 
 

9. Trade details are currently faxed to the custody bank with a follow-up e-mail or phone call 
to confirm receipt of the trade instructions.  Can your institution accommodate this process?  

 
10. Describe the process the City would follow to wire funds from the custody account to its 

main depository account?  What methods can the City use to instruct your firm to initiate 
outgoing wires (phone, e-mail, fax, online)?   

 
11. If the City is depositing additional funds into the custody account, what notification by the 

City is required?  If notification is required, what methods can the City use to notify your 
firm about incoming wires (phone, e-mail, fax, online)?  Will the bank confirm the receipt 
of the wire?  How will this confirmation occur (phone, e-mail, fax, online)? 

 
12. Describe any sub-custodial arrangements that would be used for domestic, fixed-income 

securities belonging to the City.  
 

13. Reporting 
a. Describe the frequency and format of custody reports that the bank would provide to the 

City.  Include sample reports. 
b. Does the bank provide information to clients through an on-line inquiry/reporting 

service?  Describe the information available (e.g. pending trades, asset list by account, 
transaction history). 

c. How many days after month-end is reporting available? 
d. What pricing source does the bank use for market valuation of securities? 
e. Can information be exported to Microsoft Excel?  Please describe.   
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f. What is the lag time between trade execution, availability of on-line transaction data, and 
the settlement of the transaction to the bank’s reporting system? 

 
14. Overnight Investment Sweep (Note: Money market mutual funds are not permitted.) 

a. What short-term investment vehicle(s) does the bank propose to use for the overnight 
sweep?   

b. Does a reserve requirement apply for the proposed overnight sweep option?  
c. What time of day is the cash sweep deadline? Is it end-of-day or next-day sweep? 
d. Provide return history for the thirty-six month period from July 2011 through June 2014.  
e. What fee (if any) is charged to sweep funds into the proposed investment vehicle(s)? 

How is the fee calculated? 
f. Is the sweep option automated? If not, what process does the bank use to ensure cash 

balances are invested? 
 

D. RFP Additional Information Requested (not included in the 20 page limit)  
 
1. Describe the types of insurance and bonding carried. 
 
2. Include a copy of the bank's most recent reports issued in accordance with the Statement on 

Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16. 
 

3. Provide sample agreements for the services you are proposing to provide to the City. Also 
provide copies of any other documents that will need to be signed/entered into related to the 
services, including any procedures manuals or terms and conditions that are incorporated, by 
reference, into the agreements. 
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E. Cost Proposal 
 
1. Please complete the table below with your proposed fees. Fees related to all services 

described in the proposal must be listed – even if the service is not shown in the table.  
Also, include any one-time or set-up charges, research fees, minimum fees and all other 
fees that will be charged. 

Assets Based Fee Schedule (apply for relationship)
   First $25 million
   $25 - 50 million
   $50 - 75 million
   $75 - 100 million
   $100+ million

What the Asset Based Fee for a $180 million Account?

Volume
Account Maintenance Fee (Annual Charge) 3                           
# of Portfolio Holdings 72                         
Other Charges (reporting, etc.)

Annual
Volume Unit Cost if

DTC / Fed Purchases 104                       
DTC / Fed Sells 38                         
DTC / Fed Maturities 40                         
Interest Payments 46                         
Incoming Domestic Wires 10                         
Outgoing Domestic Wires 10                          

2. Are you able to send invoices on a monthly or quarterly basis electronically?  How soon 
after month-end, do you invoice clients? 

3. Can the bank accept and apply multiple payments to a single invoice (the City makes 
payments from 4 different funds for this relationship)?  Alternatively, can the bank prepare 
separate invoices for each account, while still applying any break-points?  

4. For how long are the fees guaranteed? 
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VI. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS COMPLIANCE FORM 
 

Requirement Confirmation Additional Information 

1. Maintain cash and securities as a custodian 
versus simple safekeeping.   

□ Yes    □ No  

2. All securities and cash held by the custody bank 
shall be segregated from the assets of others 
and shall be and remain the sole property of the 
City. The securities held by the custody bank 
shall, unless payable to the bearer, be registered 
in the name of the City, or in the bank's nominee 
name.  Securities delivered to the custody bank, 
except bearer securities and Certificates of 
Deposit, shall be in due form for transfer or 
already registered as provided above. 

□ Yes    □ No  

3. Settle and deliver securities as directed through 
any broker, investment manager or advisor 
selected by the City. 

□ Yes    □ No  

4. Create, maintain and retain all account records 
relating to securities held in custody to meet the 
requirements of generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

□ Yes    □ No  

5. Provide an overnight investment vehicle for cash 
balances in the custody accounts.  A list of 
securities permitted for overnight investment is 
provided in Appendix B to this RFP. 

□ Yes    □ No  

6. Provide online and paper monthly activity 
statements and reports for all accounts.  The 
statement cut off should be the last day of the 
month.  Paper statements must be mailed by the 
5th business day of the following month. 

□ Yes    □ No  

 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Title 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date
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V. THE EVALUATION PROCESS 
 
A. Objectives  
 
The primary objective of the evaluation process is to select a firm:  
 

1. That demonstrates a thorough understanding of the scope of the engagement and the 
specific responsibilities which it entails;  

 
2. Possesses adequate resources to handle assigned responsibilities and to handle unforeseen 

circumstances that may arise;  
 
3. Assigns highly skilled, experienced, diligent, responsible and professional personnel to 

perform the required services;  
 

4. Has a strong system of controls designed to protect client assets; 
 

5. Has a track record of settling fixed-income securities transactions in an efficient and 
effective manner; and 

 
6. Provides competitive market pricing. 

 
The selection process will begin with the review and evaluation of each of the written Proposals. 
The purpose of this evaluation process is twofold: (a) to examine the responses for compliance 
with this RFP and (b) to identify the complying firms that have the highest probability of 
satisfactorily performing the services required at a reasonable cost to STLTO. The evaluation 
process will be conducted in a comprehensive and impartial manner. The evaluation process will 
be conducted by a committee selected by STLTO (the “Committee”).  
 
The Committee will evaluate the Proposals based upon the evaluation criteria for selection 
set forth below:  
 
STLTO reserves the right to reject and return unopened to the Proposer any Proposal received 
after the RFP Due Date. All timely submitted Proposals will be reviewed to determine if they 
contain all required submittals specified herein. Incomplete Proposals may be rejected.  
 
B. Interviews 
 
STLTO reserves the right to determine whether interviews will be necessary for any or all of the 
Proposers. The purpose of the interview is to further document a Proposer’s ability to provide the 
Services Required and to impart to the Committee an understanding of how specific services will be 
furnished. The proposed relationship manager and other key personnel proposed to provide the 
services must participate in the interview. The firm will be evaluated on the basis of whether the 
interview substantiates the characteristics and attributes claimed by the Proposer in its written 
response to this RFP and any other information requested by the Committee prior to the interview. 
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C. Evaluation Criteria for Selection  
 
#1 Demonstrated relevant experience with STLTO, public 

municipalities or other similar governmental entities: 
25% 

#2 Appropriate composition and experience of proposed team, overall 
firm depth and resources, availability of principals and interview 
feedback (if applicable) 

30% 

#3 Proposed fees and compensation 35% 

#4 Ability to sweep cash balances into a permitted investment with a 
competitive rate of return 

10% 
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Appendix A: Current Portfolio Holdings 
 

SECURITY DESCRIPTION CUSIP 
MATURITY 
DATE 

PAR 
AMOUNT 

BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI COMM PAPER 06538CHR5 08/25/14 
      

12,000,000  

HSBC USA INC COMM PAPER 40427SH44 08/04/14 
        

3,000,000  

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA NY COMM PAPER 06416KHB9 08/11/14 
           

935,000  

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA NY COMM PAPER 06416KHB9 08/11/14 
           

350,000  

WELLS FARGO & COMPANY COMM PAPER 9497F1HN3 08/22/14 
        

3,000,000  

BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI COMM PAPER 06538CJ51 09/05/14 
        

2,550,000  

BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI COMM PAPER 06538CJ51 09/05/14 
           

450,000  

BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI COMM PAPER 06538CJ51 09/05/14 
           

175,000  

BNP PARIBAS FINANCE INC COMM PAPER 0556N1JB0 09/11/14 
        

2,600,000  

BNP PARIBAS FINANCE INC COMM PAPER 0556N1JB0 09/11/14 
           

450,000  

BNP PARIBAS FINANCE INC COMM PAPER 0556N1JB0 09/11/14 
           

175,000  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK TAP ISSUE 3133XUMR1 09/12/14 
        

2,280,000  

BNP PARIBAS FINANCE INC COMM PAPER 0556N1JR5 09/25/14 
      

10,000,000  
CREDIT AGRICOLE NORTH AMERICA COMM 
PAPER 22532CJR6 09/25/14 

      
15,000,000  

SOCIETE GENERALE NA COMM PAPER 83365SJR5 09/25/14 
      

15,000,000  

CANADIAN IMPERIAL HOLDING COMM PAPER 13607FJS6 09/26/14 
        

2,475,000  

CANADIAN IMPERIAL HOLDING COMM PAPER 13607FJS6 09/26/14 
           

450,000  

CANADIAN IMPERIAL HOLDING COMM PAPER 13607FJS6 09/26/14 
           

175,000  

GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP COMM PAPER 36959JJS3 09/26/14 
        

1,055,000  

GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP COMM PAPER 36959JJS3 09/26/14 
        

1,525,000  

GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP COMM PAPER 36959JJS3 09/26/14 
           

450,000  

GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP COMM PAPER 36959JJS3 09/26/14 
           

175,000  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COMM PAPER 89233HJS4 09/26/14 
        

2,475,000  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COMM PAPER 89233HJS4 09/26/14 
           

450,000  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COMM PAPER 89233HJS4 09/26/14 
           

175,000  
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PRUDENTIAL FUNDING LLC COMM PAPER 74433HJW5 09/30/14 3,000,000  

PRUDENTIAL FUNDING LLC COMM PAPER 74433HJW5 09/30/14 
           

175,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828TQ3 09/30/14 
             

39,000  

FREDDIE MAC GLOBAL NOTES 3137EACY3 11/25/14 
        

4,184,000  

JP MORGAN SECURITIES LLC COMM PAPER 46640QM16 12/01/14 
        

2,600,000  

JP MORGAN SECURITIES LLC COMM PAPER 46640QM16 12/01/14 
           

450,000  

JP MORGAN SECURITIES LLC COMM PAPER 46640QM16 12/01/14 
           

350,000  

BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI LTD COMM PAPER 06538CM24 12/02/14 
           

350,000  

FANNIE MAE GLOBAL NOTES 3135G0FY4 12/19/14 
        

2,250,000  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COMM PAPER 89233HMQ4 12/24/14 
           

350,000  

FHLMC NOTES 3137EADA4 12/29/14 
        

4,209,000  

FHLMC NOTES 3137EADA4 12/29/14 
        

3,886,000  

FHLMC NOTES 3137EADA4 12/29/14 
        

2,763,000  

FHLMC NOTES 3137EADA4 12/29/14 
           

127,000  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK GLOBAL NOTES 313381H24 01/16/15 
        

5,780,000  

FHLB NOTES 313376ZQ1 03/13/15 
        

4,000,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828UT5 03/31/15 
             

80,000  

FHLMC GLOBAL REFERENCE NOTES 3134A4VC5 07/17/15 
        

3,740,000  

FHLMC GLOBAL REFERENCE NOTES 3134A4VC5 07/17/15 
        

1,090,000  

FHLMC GLOBAL REFERENCE NOTES 3134A4VC5 07/17/15 
           

400,000  

FNMA NOTES 31398AU34 07/28/15 
        

5,000,000  

FNMA NOTES 31398AU34 07/28/15 
           

900,000  

FNMA NOTES 31398AU34 07/28/15 
           

400,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828NZ9 09/30/15 
        

8,500,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828NZ9 09/30/15 
           

395,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828NZ9 09/30/15 
        

1,650,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828NZ9 09/30/15 
           

700,000  

FANNIE MAE GLOBAL NOTES 3135G0SB0 12/21/15 
        

1,040,000  
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FANNIE MAE GLOBAL NOTES 3135G0SB0 12/21/15 
           

375,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828PM6 12/31/15 
        

8,584,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828PM6 12/31/15 
        

1,634,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828PM6 12/31/15 
           

712,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828B82 02/29/16 
        

8,500,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828B82 02/29/16 
        

1,650,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828B82 02/29/16 
           

700,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QF0 04/30/16 
        

4,595,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QF0 04/30/16 
        

1,250,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QF0 04/30/16 
           

500,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
        

3,400,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
        

2,430,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828WM8 05/31/16 
        

7,570,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
           

575,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
           

505,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828WM8 05/31/16 
        

1,000,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
           

300,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828QP8 05/31/16 
           

300,000  

US TREASURY NOTES 912828WM8 05/31/16 
           

300,000  
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Appendix B: Permitted Overnight Investments 
 

Please refer to the City’s Public Fund Investment Policy dated October 31, 2013. 
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